
PUBLIC NOTICE

Chair Appointed Members
ERIC SCHERTZING REBECCA BAHAR-COOK, Treasurer

Vice-Chair DEB NOLAN, Secretary
BRIAN McGRAIN KARA HOPE

Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority
422 Adams Street, Lansing Michigan 48906 517.267.5221 Fax 517.267.5224

THE INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY WILL MEET ON
MONDAY, MAY 6, 2013 AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE PERSONNEL CONFERENCE ROOM
(D&E), HUMAN SERVICES BUILDING, 5303 S. CEDAR, LANSING

Agenda
Call to Order
Approval of Minutes – April 8, 2013
Additions to the Agenda
Limited Public Comment – 3 minutes per person

1. Community Projects Update

2. 200 Huron Street (Old Oak Tree)

3. Resolution to Authorize Revolving Loan Fund Borrowing

4. Resolution to Approve Sale of 136 S. Magnolia, Lansing

5. Resolution to Authorize CDBG demolition Agreement

6. Resolution to Purchase Tax Foreclosed Parcels
.

7. Property maintenance, renovation & development
a. Residential Property Update-Dashboard
b. Commercial Property Update
c. Garden Program Dashboard
d. Vacant Lot Update
e. General legal update- Counsel
f. Capital Community Bike Share

8. Accounts Payable & Monthly Statement
a. Accounts Payable Approval – April 2013
b. Monthly Statement – March 2013

9. Chairman & Executive Director Comments
Announcements
Public Comment – 3 minutes per person
Adjournment

PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES OR OTHER ELECTRONIC
DEVICES OR SET TO MUTE OR VIBRATE TO AVOID

DISRUPTION DURING THE MEETING



Page 1 of 5

INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

April 8, 2013
Minutes

Members Present: Eric Schertzing, Comm. Bahar-Cook, Comm. Nolan, Comm.
McGrain, Comm. Hope

Members Absent: None

Others Present: Mary Ruttan, Tim Perrone, Joe Bonsall, Sandy Gower, Lynne
Martinez, Abe Cuddeback

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Schertzing at 5:00 p.m. Conference
Room D & E of the Human Services Building, 5303 S. Cedar, Lansing.

Approval of the March 4, 2013 and March 8, 2013 Minutes

MOVED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. NOLAN, TO APPROVE
THE MARCH 4, 2013 AND MARCH 8, 2013 MINUTES.

Comm. McGrain inquired if it was appropriate for the Chair to second a motion. Tim
Perrone responded that the Chair should typically refrain from making a motion but
there is no reason they cannot offer a second.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Absent: Comm. Bahar-Cook

Additions to the Agenda:
The following items were added to the agenda:

1a. 136 S Magnolia, Lansing – Abe Cuddeback
1b. Capital Community Bike Share – Lynne Martinez
3g. Resolution to Approve the Sale of Property to the Township of Leroy, a Tax

Exempt Entity

Limited Public Comment: None

Comm. Bahar-Cook arrived at 5:03 p.m.

1. Community Projects Update
1a. 136 S Magnolia, Lansing – Abe Cuddeback



Page 2 of 5

Chairperson Schertzing introduced Abe Cuddeback, who is interested in purchasing
136 S Magnolia, Lansing for a rental. Mr. Cuddeback introduced himself to the board
and provided his personal background. He currently owns 116 S Magnolia as a rental.
He purchased the property in 2009 and has invested approximately $35,000 in the
property. Comm. Bahar-Cook asked about the rental to homeowner ration on the block.
Executive Director Ruttan stated she did not have the specifics, but estimated it would
be about 60-40 rentals. Comm. McGrain asked where Mr. Cuddeback lived. He replied
that his home was in neighborhood behind Donley Elementary School. Comm. McGrain
asked if they self-manage their rentals. Mr. Cuddeback responded that he does. Comm.
McGrain asked if Mr. Cuddeback owned any other rentals besides 116 S Magnolia. Mr.
Cuddeback stated he owned a second rental near the intersection of Grand River and
Hagadorn. Comm. Bahar-Cook asked about the time-frame for renovations to be
completed. Chairperson Schertzing stated the agreement would require all renovations
to be completed within two years. Comm. Bahar-Cook stated she was supportive of the
project, but felt uncomfortable without more concrete policies to back it up. Executive
Director Ruttan reminded the board that they had already approved two test cases for
the new investor program – one rental and one owner-occupied – with the goal of
working out the final details so that the board would not have to approved multiple
revisions to the program. This is a presentation of the proposed rental test case.
However, because it is a transfer to a non-owner-occupant, the board must grant
approval before going forward. Comm. Hope asked how we would ensure Mr.
Cuddeback would follow-through with the required renovations. Executive Director
Ruttan stated an option to purchase would give Mr. Cuddeback the necessary legal
interest in the property to carry out the renovations. Title to the property will not transfer
until the requirements of the purchase option, i.e. the renovations, etcetera, have been
satisfied. Comm. Bahar-Cook stated she would like the board to see the offer to
purchase before approving the sale.

1b. Capital Community Bike Share – Lynne Martinez

Chairperson Schertzing introduced Lynne Martinez who wished to address the board
concerning Capital Community Bike Share. Ms. Martinez presented a handout to board
members and updated them on the progress made so far. She stated the money
requested would be used to help the organization complete the application for 501(c)(3)
status with the IRS. Comm. Nolan asked who was on the organization’s board. Ms.
Martinez stated the board members are: Rick Brown, from Meridian Township and
Randy Kilpatrick, from the City of Lansing. There is one vacancy on the board caused
by the recent resignation of Rory Neuner. They are in the process of setting up
interviews to fill that vacancy. Comm. Nolan asked why the group was still investing in
planning and had not moved on to implementation. Ms. Martinez responded that the
initial surveys had been used to establish the existence of need and community interest.
Further research is needed to establish the concrete details of the project such as
locations and structure.



Page 3 of 5

MOVED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK, TO
AUTHORIZE A GRANT OF $2,500 TO CAPITAL COMMUNITY BIKE SHARE. MOTION
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

2. Financial
2a. Valuation Report

Chairperson Schertzing stated the property valuation report was included in the meeting
packet. It does not include any structures included in the NSP2 program because the
proceeds of those sales must be returned to MSHDA. Executive Director Ruttan
explained the amounts in “Land Value” column were derived using a formula based on
the average square-foot value based on a sampling of vacant land appraisals
throughout the City of Lansing. The values are $0.53/square-foot for a buildable lot and
$0.38/square-foot for non-buildable lots.

2b. Land Contract Accounts Receivable

Chairperson Schertzing stated the land contract accounts receivable balance sheet was
included in the packet. Comm. McGrain asked what the standard re-payment time-
frame was. Joseph Bonsall replied that land contracts typically include a three-year
balloon payment. However, the Land Bank does have a number of land contracts
structured over ten years with no balloon payment. He added that land contract
purchasers pay an average of 7% interest.

2c. Monthly Statement – February 2013

The February 2013 monthly financial statement was received and placed on file.
Executive Director Ruttan provided an overview of the statement for board education.
Comm. McGrain asked about the relationship between the values shown as land
contract receivable and land contract revenue. Executive Director Ruttan explained that
because land contracts carry the legal responsibility to pay, the revenues for the entire
year are recognized at once and the receivable is reduced as payments come in.
Comm. Nolan asked what makes up the Due to MSHDA – NSP2 liability item. Executive
Director Ruttan stated that is the actual costs of the NSP2 projects which are paid back
to MSHDA when the homes are sold.

2d. July 1, 2013 Maturity of 2007A/2009A Series Note

Chairperson Schertzing stated the Land Banks existing notes will mature on July 1,
2013. The notes will need to be extended and/or increased before that date. Executive
Director Ruttan reminded the board that part of the rationale behind creating the
property valuation report was to demonstrate the Land Bank’s assets far exceed its
liabilities. Comm. Bahar-Cook asked about the need for an expanded line of credit to
continue the Land Bank’s operations. Chairperson Schertzing stated that a significant
portion of the Land Bank’s debt is in the land contract receivable which serves to earn
the Land Bank money in the form of interest and furthers the goal of expanding home-



Page 4 of 5

ownership opportunities. However, having that money in the receivable can hinder the
Land Bank’s ability to take advantage of opportunities to participate in projects or
acquire strategic properties. If the Land Bank’s line of credit is not increased, it will
decrease our ability to take advantage of possible future opportunities.

3. Property Maintenance, Renovation & Development
3f. General Legal Update – Counsel

Mr. Perrone stated there were no legal issues to report.

Comm. Hope left the meeting at 6:39 p.m.

3a. Residential Property Update – Dashboard

Chairperson Schertzing stated the dashboard was included in the meeting packet.

3b. Commercial Property Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated there was no commercial property update this month.

3c. PROP Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated there was no PROP update this month.

3d. Garden Program Update – Dashboard

Chairperson Schertzing stated the Garden Program dashboard was included in the
packet.

3e. Vacant Lot Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated we continue to make progress marketing our vacant lots.

3g. Resolution to Approve the Sale of Property to the Township of Leroy, a Tax
Exempt Entity

MOVED BY COMM. NOLAN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK, TO APPROVE
THE RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE SALE OF PROPERTY TO THE TOWNSHIP
OF LEROY, A TAX EXEMPT ENTITY.

Chairperson Schertzing stated an email received from Leroy Township indicating the
Township’s desire to acquire 2480 E. Grand River Ave., Williamston for the purpose of
demolishing the structure. The Land Bank’s Policies and Procedures require board
approval for any transfer of property to a tax-exempt entity. Comm. McGrain asked what
the property was. Mr. Bonsall replied it is an abandoned mini-storage facility that is
sinking into a swap.



Page 5 of 5

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

4. Accounts Payable & Monthly Statement
6a. Accounts Payable Approval – March 2013

MOVED BY COMM. NOLAN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK TO APPROVE
THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR MARCH 2013. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

6b. Accounts Payable Approval – February 2013

MOVED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK TO
APPROVE THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR FEBRUARY 2013. MOTION CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY. Absent: Comm. Hope

7. Chairman and Executive Director Comments

Chairperson Schertzing reminded everyone to put May 4-5 on their calendars for the
Land Bank’s Spring Home Showcase.

Announcements: None

Limited Public Comment: None
The meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph Bonsall









































































































Inventory Previous Month Acquired Rental or Garden Demolished Sold Current Inventory

as of 12/31/2012 as of 2/28/2013 as of 3/31/2013 as of 3/31/2013 as of 3/31/2013 as of 3/31/2013 as of 3/31/2013

Structures 354 346 1 0 (1) (11) 343
Rentals 29 29 0 0 0 0 29
Gardens 70 72 0 10 0 0 80
Vacant Land 477 473 1 (10) 1 (5) 464
Commercial Rental 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Commercial Vacant 5 6 0 0 1 0 6
Commercial 6 5 0 (1) (1) 0 4

TOTAL(S) 941 931 2 0 0 (16) 927

Total Line of Credit $5,000,000.00
Obligated 3,425,000.00

Available Balance 1,575,000.00

INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK

ACTIVITY REPORT

March 31, 2013

Approved Line of Credit

as of 3/31/2013

(DASHBOARD)



Participating ICLB 2010 Gardens 13

Participating ICLB 2011 Gardens 14

Participating ICLB 2012 Gardens 24

New 2013 Gardens 6

Total Gardens 57

Total ICLB Parcels 76

Total Ingham County Treasurer Parcels 6

GLFB GP Affiliated Gardens 16

Vacant/Possible Garden Space 350

People Served
320 households = 747
people

4/29/2013 Garden Program Update

Totals

























05/02/2013 CHECK REGISTER FOR INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
CHECK DATE FROM 04/01/2013 - 04/30/2013

Check Date Check Vendor Name Amount
04/01/2013 9241 PNC BANK, NA 5,459.38
04/01/2013 9242 PNC BANK, NA 5,836.83
04/03/2013 9243 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3,000.00
04/04/2013 9244 RHONDA Y GUYTON 358.78
04/04/2013 9245 USAA 448.48
04/09/2013 9246 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 788.66
04/09/2013 9247 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 717.69
04/09/2013 9248 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 890.19
04/09/2013 9249 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 154.43
04/09/2013 9250 CONSUMERS ENERGY 857.11
04/09/2013 9251 CONSUMERS ENERGY 1,003.89
04/09/2013 9252 CONSUMERS ENERGY 664.58
04/09/2013 9253 CONSUMERS ENERGY 34.29
04/09/2013 9254 CITY OF LESLIE 59.16
04/09/2013 9255 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LANSING 45.84
04/09/2013 9256 THE JOB SHOP INK, INC. 80.00
04/09/2013 9257 MICHIGAN HISTORIC PRESERVATION NETW 75.00
04/09/2013 9258 SPRINT 258.84
04/09/2013 9259 H.C. BERGER COMPANY 141.09
04/09/2013 9260 HASSELBRING CLARK CO 232.27
04/09/2013 9261 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS 99.74
04/09/2013 9262 PAM BLAIR 240.00
04/09/2013 9263 AMR ALLIANCES 535.00
04/09/2013 9264 CEDAM 250.00
04/09/2013 9265 REHMANN ROBSON 6,000.00
04/09/2013 9266 CITY PULSE 1,009.08
04/09/2013 9267 CITY PULSE 178.25
04/09/2013 9268 W.F. BOHNET ELECTRIC CO 108.57
04/09/2013 9269 DAVIS GLASS & SCREEN 42.25
04/09/2013 9270 MARK'S LOCK SHOP INC 12.50
04/09/2013 9271 LANE'S REPAIR 273.00
04/09/2013 9272 COMMERCIAL CLEANING 1,445.90
04/09/2013 9273 BWB CLEANING 1,889.80
04/09/2013 9274 ESI ENERGY CONSULTANTS 580.00
04/09/2013 9275 ETC 245.00
04/09/2013 9276 COMPLETE MASONRY & CONSTRUCTION LLC 45.00
04/09/2013 9277 CHARLES L THERRIAN BUILDER 591.80

04/09/2013 9278 MICHIGAN DEMOLITION & EXCAVATION 800.00
04/09/2013 9279 BROWN DRILLING COMPANY INC 224.28
04/09/2013 9280 MERIDIAN PLUMBING 288.00
04/09/2013 9281 CENTURY CONSTRUCTION 16,927.00
04/09/2013 9282 LJ TRUMBLE BUILDERS 2,400.00
04/09/2013 9283 MICH STATE HOUSING DEV AUTHORITY 31,181.00
04/09/2013 9284 MOW MASTER 1,320.00
04/09/2013 9285 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS 1,650.00
04/09/2013 9286 JOSEPH G BONSALL 400.00
04/09/2013 9287 DENNIS GRAHAM 247.26
04/23/2013 9288 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 541.71
04/23/2013 9289 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 590.99



04/23/2013 9290 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 325.05
04/23/2013 9291 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 444.75
04/23/2013 9292 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 490.06
04/23/2013 9293 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 86.24
04/23/2013 9294 CONSUMERS ENERGY 779.84
04/23/2013 9295 CONSUMERS ENERGY 636.72
04/23/2013 9296 CONSUMERS ENERGY 731.79
04/23/2013 9297 CONSUMERS ENERGY 326.10
04/23/2013 9298 CITY OF LESLIE 985.95
04/23/2013 9299 TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES 197.86
04/23/2013 9300 AT & T 281.86
04/24/2013 9301 COMCAST 66.95
04/24/2013 9302 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 189.91
04/24/2013 9303 HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 606.63
04/24/2013 9304 PURCHASE POWER 95.37
04/24/2013 9305 STR.GRANTS, L.L.C. 3,885.00
04/24/2013 9306 COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C. 753.85
04/24/2013 9307 WILLIAM KIRK GREEN 500.00
04/24/2013 9308 EDEN GLEN CONDO ASSOCIATION 5,705.00
04/24/2013 9309 SOUTH ST, LLC 500.00
04/24/2013 9310 GREATER LANSING HOUSING COALITION 5,976.94
04/24/2013 9311 LANSING ICE & FUEL 331.25
04/24/2013 9312 MARTINEZ CONSULTING GROUP 99.00
04/24/2013 9313 RIZZI DESIGNS 2,144.90
04/24/2013 9314 KATE TYKOCKI, LLC 2,436.25
04/24/2013 9315 SUCH VIDEO 2,600.00
04/24/2013 9316 CITY PULSE 879.30
04/24/2013 9317 SWAT ENVIRONMENTAL 670.00
04/24/2013 9318 SPICER GROUP 3,600.00
04/24/2013 9319 KEBS, INC. 3,600.00
04/24/2013 9320 MOLENAAR & ASSOCIATES, INC 1,500.00
04/24/2013 9321 PAUL HICKNER 600.00
04/24/2013 9322 WISEMAN TREE EXPERTS 550.00
04/24/2013 9323 LEN'S CARPET CARE & CONSULTANTS 803.92
04/24/2013 9324 COMMERCIAL CLEANING 1,626.70
04/24/2013 9325 BWB CLEANING 1,814.00
04/24/2013 9326 VET'S ACE HARDWARE 491.01
04/24/2013 9327 FOX BROTHERS COMPANY 215.57
04/24/2013 9328 HAZEN LUMBER, INC. 112.83
04/24/2013 9329 ROOFING INNOVATIONS, LLC 375.00

04/24/2013 9330 NORSHORE BUILDING INC 23,597.00
04/24/2013 9331 CENTURY CONSTRUCTION 30,721.75
04/24/2013 9332 CHARLES L THERRIAN BUILDER 335.00
04/24/2013 9333 BAKER BUILDERS, INC 200.00
04/24/2013 9334 KEHREN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 3,870.00
04/24/2013 9335 SCHUMACHER'S FOUR SEASONS 45.00
04/24/2013 9336 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS 1,660.00
04/24/2013 9337 LINDA SCHONBERG 109.52
04/24/2013 9338 DENNIS GRAHAM 193.51

GEN TOTALS:
Total of 98 Checks: 199,970.02



INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
MARCH 31, 2013

Cash $ 2,981.07
Accounts Receivable 120.00
Land Contract Receivable 1,847,869.04
Land Contract Interest Receivable 101,199.16
Land Contract Escrow 16,286.31
Notes Receivable 180,000.00
Specific Tax Receivable 31,513.61
Specific Tax Receivable-Prior Year 940.67
OCOF Nonprofit Receivable 5,322.68
Ingham County Receivable 955.00
Lansing City Receivable-General 18,005.63
NSP3 Lansing City Receivable 4,820.81
Inventory-NSP2 4,481,400.00
Inventory 4,626,818.42

Total Assets $ 11,318,232.40

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 1,388.00
Notes Payable

PNC Bank 3,425,000.00
Due to MSHDA-NSP2 4,187,681.00
Due to Ingham County 1,173,596.29
Rental Deposit 10,882.00
Good Faith Deposits 3,000.00
Land Contract Escrow 7,773.12
Deferred Revenue 328,500.00

Total Liabilities 9,137,820.41

Retained Earnings $1,720,903.43

Total Net Assets $ 459,508.56



STATE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
MARCH 31, 2013

Revenues
Property Sales 153,771.97
NSP1 City of Lansing Revenue 134,652.34
HOME City of Lansing Revenue 59,253.00
Lansing Reinvestment Revenue 65,734.00
NSP2 MSHDA Revenue 274,056.49
NSP2 MSHDA Adm. Revenue 12,559.51
NSP2 Program Income 235,300.00
NSP County Revenue 4,338.85
Interest Income 121,419.79
Rental Income 40,261.00
Garden Program Revenue 10.00
Late Fee Revenue 980.03
Miscellaneous Revenue 581.39
Ingham County Allocation 400,000.00

Total Revenue $ 1,502,918.37

Operating Expenses
Cost of Projects 81,320.18
Supplies 3,660.25
Audit Fee 6,000.00
Communication 1,111.70
Security 121.84
Rental 1,700.00
Equipment-small purchase 1,775.69
Vehicle Expense 553.15
Postage 140.70
Media 2,111.60
Consultants 8,585.00
Bank Fee 149.64
Legal 1,149.83
Contractual Services 6,156.25
Software 13,985.00
Travel 186.11
Payroll Reimbursement 55,789.85
Americorp Member 1,595.50
Employer Tax Liability 3,666.84
Payroll Service 448.60
Workers Compensation 1,956.38
Utilities 144.77
Building Maintenance 2,601.65
Lawn & Snow 315.00
Garden Program 805.66
Rental Expense 17,370.03
HOME Lansing City 154,677.38



Operating Expenses Continued

NSP1 Lansing City 116,604.34
NSP Ingham County 1,669.85
NSP II 315,879.26
NSP2 Program Income Expense 235,299.90
NSP III 5,877.86

Total Expense $ 1,043,409.81

Total Net Assets, end of period $ 459,508.56


